ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COMM TTEE
April 12, 2012
8:08 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BILL NO. 53(FIN)

"An Act reestablishing the Al aska Comm ssion on the Status of
Wnen; and relating to the purpose and powers of the Al aska
Human Rel ations Conmi ssion.”

- MOVED CSSB 53(FIN) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 24

Establishing the Al aska Legislative Celebration Conm ssion to
organi ze events to comenorate the 100th anniversary of the
first convening of the |legislative branch of government in
Al aska.

- MOVED SCR 24 OQJT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 179
"An Act relating to mssing vul nerable adult pronpt response and
notification plans."

- MOVED HCS SB 179(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 11 AM

Urging nenbers of the Al aska delegation in Congress to support
efforts by the National Wnen's Hstory Mseum to secure
property in Wshington, D.C., near the National Mill, as a
permanent | ocation for the National Wnen's Hi story Miseum

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- April 12, 2012



- MOVED QUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 53

SHORT TITLE. COWM SSI ON ON THE STATUS OF WOMVEN
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 19/ 11 (S) STA, FIN

03/ 24/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 24/ 11 (S) Heard & Held

03/ 24/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 29/ 11 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

03/ 29/ 11 (S Moved SB 53 Qut of Conmittee

03/ 29/ 11 (S) M NUTE( STA)

03/30/ 11 (S) STA RPT 3DP 1DNP 1NR

03/ 30/ 11 (S DP: W ELECHOWBKI , KOOKESH, PASKVAN

03/30/ 11 (S) DNP: G ESSEL

03/30/ 11 (S) NR  MEYER

01/ 20/ 12 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

01/ 20/ 12 (S) Heard & Held

01/ 20/ 12 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 02/ 12 (S FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532

02/ 02/ 12 (S) Moved CSSB 53(FIN) Qut of Commttee

02/ 02/ 12 (S) M NUTE( FI N)

02/ 03/ 12 (S FIN RPT CS 5DP 2NR SAME TI TLE

02/ 03/ 12 (S) DP: HOFFMAN, THOVAS, EGAN, MCGU RE,
ELLIS

02/ 03/ 12 (S) NR: STEDVAN, OLSON

02/ 22/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 22/ 12 (S) VERSI ON:  CSSB 53( FI N)

02/ 24/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 24/ 12 (H STA, FIN

04/ 03/ 12 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 03/ 12 (H Heard & Held

04/ 03/ 12 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 05/ 12 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

04/ 05/ 12 (H Heard & Held

04/ 05/ 12 (H M NUTE( STA)

04/ 12/ 12 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SCR 24

SHORT TI TLE: COVM SSI ON ON 100TH ANNI'V. OF LEG SLATURE

SPONSOR( s) :

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

RULES BY REQUEST

- 2- April 12, 2012



03/ 12/ 12
03/ 12/ 12
04/ 02/ 12
04/ 02/ 12
04/ 02/ 12
04/ 03/ 12
04/ 03/ 12
04/ 03/ 12
04/ 04/ 12
04/ 04/ 12

04/ 04/ 12
04/ 04/ 12
04/ 04/ 12
04/ 06/ 12
04/ 06/ 12
04/ 06/ 12
04/ 09/ 12
04/ 09/ 12
04/ 11/ 12
04/ 11/ 12
04/ 12/ 12
04/ 12/ 12

BILL: SB 179

(S)
(S)
(S)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
FIN

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
<Above |Item Renoved from Agenda>
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Heard & Held

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT 7DP

DP: HOFFMAN, STEDMVAN, THOVAS, EGAN
MCGUI RE, OLSON, ELLIS

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Moved SCR 24 Qut of Committee

M NUTE( FI N)

BEFORE THE SENATE ON FI NAL PASSAGE
TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON: SCR 24

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

FIN AT 1:30 PM HOUSE FI NANCE 519
<Pendi ng Referral >

STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

FIN AT 9: 00 AM HOUSE FI NANCE 519

SHORT TI TLE: M SSI NG VULNERABLE ADULT RESPONSE PLAN

SPONSOR( s) :

01/ 27/ 12
01/ 27/ 12
02/ 09/ 12
02/ 09/ 12
02/ 09/ 12
02/ 16/ 12
02/ 16/ 12
02/ 16/ 12
02/ 17/ 12
02/ 17/ 12
04/ 02/ 12
04/ 02/ 12
04/ 02/ 12
04/ 03/ 12
04/ 03/ 12
04/ 03/ 12
04/ 04/ 12
04/ 04/ 12

HOUSE STA COW TTEE

DAVI S

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
STA, FIN

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( STA)

STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Moved SB 179 Qut of Committee

M NUTE( STA)

STA RPT 3DP

DP: W ELECHOWBKI, MEYER, Q ESSEL
FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Moved SB 179 CQut of Committee

M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT 6DP 1NR

DP: HOFFMAN, STEDVAN, THQOVAS, EGAN
MCGUI RE, ELLIS

- 3- April 12, 2012



04/ 04/ 12 (S) NR. OLSON

04/ 04/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

04/ 04/ 12 (S) VERSI O\: SB 179

04/ 05/ 12 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
04/ 05/ 12 (H STA, JUD

04/ 12/ 12 (H STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SJR 11
SHORT TITLE: NATI ONAL WOMEN S HI STORY MUSEUM
SPONSOR(s): DAVI S

01/ 17/ 12 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS

01/ 17/ 12 (S) STA

02/ 07/ 12 (S) STA AT 9:00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 07/ 12 (S) Moved SJR 11 Qut of Conmittee

02/ 07/ 12 (S) M NUTE( STA)

02/ 08/ 12 (S) STA RPT 5DP

02/ 08/ 12 (S) DP:  WELECHOMBKI, KOOKESH,  PASKVAN,
MEYER, G ESSEL

03/ 23/ 12 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 23/ 12 (S) VERSI ON: SJR 11 AM

03/ 26/ 12 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

03/ 26/ 12 (H) STA

04/ 12/ 12 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced SB 53.

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 53 on behal f of Senator Davis,
sponsor.

H LLARY A. MORGAN, CEO

Young Wbhnen's Christian Associ ation (YWCA) Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 53.

MARI E DARLI NG

AARP
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- April 12, 2012



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 53.

TIM LAMKI N, Staff

Senator Gary Stevens

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Gave a Power Point presentation during the
hearing on SCR 24, on behalf of the Senate Rules Standing
Comm ttee, on which Senator Stevens is a nenber.

STEVE HAYCOX, Professor of History

Uni versity of Al aska, Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SCR 24.

CLAUS M NASKE, Professor Eneritus

Uni versity of Al aska, Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SCR 24.

MARI E DARLI N
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SCR 24.

SENATOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced SB 179.

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SB 179 on behalf of Senator
Davi s, sponsor.

M CHAEL O HARE, Deputy Director

Di vi sion of Honel and Security/ Energency Managenent

Department of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs

Ft. Richardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on SB
179.

PATRI CK CUNNI NGHAM Associ ate Prof essor of Social Wrk
Col l ege of Health

Uni versity of Al aska Anchor age;

Menber

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 12, 2012



Al zhei ner's Resource of Al aska Board
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 179.

RCDNEY DI AL, Li eut enant

Al aska State Troopers

Ket chi kan, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SB 179.

MARI E DARLI N

AARP

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 179.

SENATCOR BETTYE DAVI S

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, introduced SJR 11.

CELESTE HODGE, Staff

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented SJR 11 on behalf of Senator
Davi s, sponsor.

ROBI N REED, President/CEO

Nat i onal Foundation for Wnen Legislators (NFW);

Member

Nat i onal Wbnen's Hi story Miseum board

(No address provided)

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on SJR 11.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:08: 25 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
meeting to order at 8:08 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton

P. WIson, Johansen, Petersen, Guenberg, and Lynn were present

at the call to order.

SB_53-COMM SSI ON ON THE STATUS OF WOMVEN

8:08: 45 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 12, 2012



CHAI R LYNN announced that the first order of business was CS FOR
SENATE BILL NO 53(FIN), "An Act reestablishing the Al aska
Commi ssion on the Status of Wnen; and relating to the purpose
and powers of the Al aska Hunan Rel ati ons Comnmi ssion. "

8: 08: 59 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced SB 53.

8:09:19 AM

CELESTE HODGE, Staff, Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legi slature, presented SB 53 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor. She stated that the intent of bill is to reestablish
the Alaska Commission on the Status of Wnen to inprove the
status of wonen in Alaska. She said the need for the conmm ssion
is supported by startling statistics. She offered to answer
guestions fromthe conmttee.

8:10: 22 AM

H LLARY A MORGAN, CEO Young Wnen's Christian Association
(YWCA) Al aska, testified in support of SB 53. She stated that
there is a need for a state agency to address the needs of wonen
t hroughout the state. She said Governor Parnell's Choose
Respect Canpai gn has denonstrated that issues of sexual assault
and donestic violence affecting Al aska's wonen and girls need
statewi de oversight. She said the establishnent of the
comm ssion would fulfill that function and give the nessage to
Al aska's wonen and girls that finding solutions to issues
affecting them would continue long after the Choose Respect
Canpai gn. She stated that Al aska has some of the highest rates
per capita for sexual assault and donestic violence. She
i ndi cated that $500,000 would bring that |asting nmessage to the
wonen and girls of Al aska.

CHAI R LYNN remarked that nmen and boys are also victins of sexua
abuse.

8:12:49 AM

MARI E DARLI NG AARP, testifying in support of SB 53, pointed to
a letter from AARP, included in the commttee packet, which
lists the reasons AARP supports the proposed |egislation. She
hi ghlighted the follow ng reasons: wonen are at a higher risk
of poverty as they age; and wonen currently earn 77 cents on the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- April 12, 2012



dollar for every dollar nen earn. She said there are
i nprovenents to be made that need the support of the comm ssion.
She said a vast nmgjority of wonen are caregivers and a |ot of
them are grandparents. She said AARP urges the legislature's
support of SB 53. She further encouraged the commttee to read
a version of Trends.

8:14: 49 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:15: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said as a father of three girls, the
proposed legislation is inportant to him He posited that a
lack of confidence results in wonen being in positions they
don't need to be in. He stated support for SB 53.

8:16: 09 AM
REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON said she thinks the proposed bill is a
step in right direction, but "not enough.” She opined that the

men in the state need to be reached, although she said she does
not know how. She suggested that a comm ssion on the status of
men would be a good idea, because nen will not |isten to wonen
as well as to other nen.

8:17:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said he does not di sagree wth
Representative P. WIson, but said he does not want his
daughters to wait around for a man to tell them when they shoul d
get out of a situation. He said, "I want them to be able to
stand up and not have to worry about it and walk out of a
situation wi thout worrying about changing the mnd of a man. |
think that's the whole point."

8:18: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to report CSSB 53(FIN) out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB 53(FIN) was
reported out of the House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

8:18: 28 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 12, 2012



The commttee took an at-ease from8:18 a.m to 8:21 a.m

SCR 24- COVWM SSI ON ON 100TH ANNILV. OF LEG SLATURE

8:21: 02 AM

CHAI R LYNN announced that the next order of business was SENATE
CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON  NO. 24, Est abl i shi ng the Al aska
Legislative Celebration Commssion to organize events to
commenorate the 100th anniversary of the first convening of the
| egi sl ative branch of governnent in Al aska.

8:21:15 AM

TIM LAWI N, Staff, Senat or Gary Stevens, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, gave a PowerPoint presentation on behalf of the
Senate Rules Standing Conmttee, on which Senator Stevens is a
nmenber . He said the convening of the first Alaska Territorial
Legislature was 45 years in the making and took place on March
3, 1913. He showed a photograph of Juneau in 1905 and noted
that the usable land then was just where the nountains net the
sea. In 1911, U. S. Congress authorized the funds for the Al aska
[territorial] capitol; however, because of a lack of Iand and
the advent of WA, construction was not started until Septenber
1929. The building, then known as the Federal and Territorial
Bui l ding, was conpleted in February 1931. M. Lankin showed a
phot ograph of the first [Territorial] House of Representatives,

dated Spring 1913. He noted that the House was conprised
entirely of men at the tinme; the first fenale representative was
elected in 1923. He said the initial gatherings of the

Territorial Senate were held in the El ks Lodge, but related that
he had been unable to get confirmation regarding the early
gat hering place of the House nenbers, other than that it nmet in
"various halls."

8:25:11 AM

MR. LAWMKIN indicated that from 1913 to 1947, +the Al aska
Territorial House had 16 nenbers serving 15 conmttees. I n
response to a question, he said the Senate was conprised of 8
peopl e. He indicated that in one particular 60-day session, 84
bills were passed. He offered exanples of the legislation that
was passed, and he noted that the first bill to pass gave wonen
the right to vote. M. Lankin pointed to a nmenber of the Al aska
Territorial Legislature, depicted in a photograph, and noted
that the man's name was El wood Bruner (ph), whom M. Lankin
di scovered was a distant cousin.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 12, 2012



8:29:21 AM

MR. LAMKIN said SCR 24 is a rare opportunity to pay tribute to
Al aska's history. He noted that there were sone historians
available to testify.

8:30: 00 AM

CHAIR LYNN noted that sonme of the |laws passed by the Al aska
Territorial Legislature are still in effect, and he ventured
that it would be interesting to look through sone of the old
| aws.

8:30: 20 AM

STEVE HAYCOX, Professor of Hi story, testified in support of SCR
24. He expressed his hope that the legislature would see the
proposed concurrent resolution not only as an act of
comenoration of the first legislature, but also an act of
education for the citizens of Alaska - particularly students.
He said SCR 24 represents the beginning of self-governnent for
Al aska. He stated Janes Wckersham the principal chanpion of
the bill that <created the legislature, was commtted to
denocracy and governnent by consent of the governed. He tal ked
about the long road fromterritorial governnment to statehood and
the lesson that provides young Al askans regarding the inportance
of perseverance. He ventured that the comm ssion would not need

to spend nmuch noney, because people could use "on line and
el ectronic technology” to do "what needs to be done fairly
reasonably."” He suggested having a half-day public session on
March 3.

8:.32:41 AM

CLAUS M NASKE, Professor Eneritus, University of Al aska,
Fai rbanks, remarked wupon the interesting manner in which
| egislators arrived in Juneau during territorial days, including
sone by foot. Regarding the work done by the territorial
| egislature, he said one of the constraints had to do wth
t axati on. He nmentioned an influential |obbyist who represented
fi sher nmen. M. Naske said the Alaska Territorial Legislature
net every other year and established devices intended to
circunscribe the federally appointed governor. He echoed M.

Haycox' remark that not nuch noney needs to be spent, but opined
that it is worthwhile to remnd people of Alaska' s colorful
hi story. He stated his support of SCR 24.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- April 12, 2012



8:35:29 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON stated her support of SCR 14. She
asked M. Naske what the first budget was and how many bills
wer e passed that year

MR. NASKE said he has that information in his books, but does

not know off hand. Notw t hstanding that, he said the budget
amounted to about $2 mllion at one point. He said there was
not nmuch noney available to spend; taxation and the powers of
the legislation were |inted. He said the first state budget
was just about $40 nillion, which is a drop in the bucket
conpared to the current budgets of several billion dollars.
8:36: 38 AM

MR. LAMKI N stated that the budget in 1913 was $200, 000.

8:37:18 AM

MARI E DARLIN specified that she was testifying on behalf of
hersel f. She said she is a walking tour guide. She said
consi derabl e research has been done and she would like to see
nore done. She explained the reason the Alaska Territorial

Legislators net in the El ks Lodge was because that organization
offered the space for the |east anobunt of noney. Follow ng that
the legislature net in the Goldstein building, which she
i ndicated was erected in 1913-1914. Regarding a building that
was referred to as the governor's house, she explained that it
was used as offices; the governor actually lived across the
street. She confirmed that M. Wckersham was the one
responsible for getting a territorial |egislature. She said
there was a person who took six weeks to get to Juneau to serve
in the legislature, because he traveled through Interior Al aska
by dog team and from Val dez on a steanship. She said one of the
reasons that he may have taken so long to arrive in Juneau is
that back then the steanships often traveled first from Val dez
to Seattle before heading back north to Juneau. She echoed
previous testinony that the legislature nmet every other year,
and she said U S. Congress put nany stipulations on what the
| egi sl ature could do. She said M. Wckersham bought the house
on Seventh Street in 1928. She explained that the wonmen in the
photos of the earliest legislature were staff to |egislators.
She offered her understanding that the first woman to serve on
the legislature was not elected, but took the place of her
husband; the second fermale |egislator was el ected. She pointed

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- April 12, 2012



out that the Alaska Territorial Legislature gave wonen the right
to vote seven years before U S. Congress did.

8:42:29 AM

M5. DARLIN, in response to Representative G uenberg, offered her
understanding that Henry Rodin at one tine was the territorial
treasurer.

8:42:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN, regarding the aforenentioned period
when Al aska's governance had to be approved by U S. Congress,
remar ked upon the great distance between the East Coast and
Al aska and the chall enges that nust have presented.

8:43: 26 AM

CHAIR LYNN, after ascertaining that there was no one else who
wi shed to testify, closed public testinony.

8:43:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CRUENBERG noted that the date the Al aska
Territorial Legislature first convened - March 3, 1913 - 1is
shown on page 2, line 8. He expressed his hope that the

proposed conm ssion would reconmend that schools mght observe
that historical event on that date, and that |egislative nenbers
could visit schools on that date.

8:44. 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report SCR 24 out of comittee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, SCR 24 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

CHAI R LYNN conmended the commttee for its work, said this my
be the last neeting of regular session, and handed the gavel to
Vice Chair Keller.

8:45:49 AM

The conmmttee took an at-ease from8:46 a.m to 8 47 a.m

SB 179-M SSI NG VULNERABLE ADULT RESPONSE PLAN

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- April 12, 2012



8:47:05 AM

VI CE CHAIR KELLER announced that the next order of business was
SENATE BILL NO 179, "An Act relating to mssing vulnerable
adult pronpt response and notification plans.”

8:47:18 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for SB 179, Version 27-LS1250\M Gardner,
4/11/12, as a work draft. There being no objection, Version M
was before the conmttee.

8:47: 33 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
i ntroduced SB 179. She said Version M nmade one change. She
deferred to her staff for further explanation.

8:47:54 AM

CELESTE HODGE, Staff, Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legislature, presented SB 179 on behalf of Senator Davis,
sponsor. She said the change occurs in Section 2, on page 2,
line 21, where "or an officer or enployee of the |aw enforcenent
agency" was added following "a |law enforcenent agency". She
said that change was recommended by the Departnent of Law to
further protect both the |aw enforcenent agency and i ndividual
of ficers, thereby encouraging nore participation in the program
by the agency.

8:48: 52 AM

M5. HODGE explained that SB 179 would create a new statew de
alert systemto help find vulnerable mssing adults. She said
the system which is simlar to the nationw de Anber Alert
program would help local |aw enforcenent notify the public when

a nmentally or physically inpaired Al askan goes m ssing. She
said Al aska has the fastest grow ng senior popul ation and cannot
afford to ignore this problem any |onger. She reported that

according to the Alaska Commssion on Aging, there were
approximately 7,785 Al askans suffering from Al zheiner's D sease
and related denmentia in 2010, and that nunber is expected to
grow to nore than 17,000 by 2030. She said in Fairbanks, a
woman 63 years of age suffering from Al zheiner's Di sease froze
to death after becom ng disoriented while driving, running out
of gas, and trying to walk several mles to seek helnp. MVs.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- April 12, 2012



Hodge said that incident illustrates the need for a system to
assist in the search for mssing vulnerable adults. She said
when a vulnerable adult goes mssing, his/her best chance of
survival is to be found within 24-48 hours.

M5. HODGE said the proposed legislation calls for the Departnent
of Mlitary & Veterans Affairs to coordinate with the Departnment
of Public Safety to create and inplenent pronpt response and
notification plans that would use a voluntary network of
statewi de and | ocal newspapers, as well as radio and television
stations to rapidly alert the public that a vulnerable adult is

m ssi ng. Further, under SB 179, both departnments would
establish standards on what triggers an alert and when a
vul nerable adult would be considered m ssing. She said the

proposed legislation would ensure that the search for Alaska's
nost vul nerable citizens happens pronptly. M. Hodge noted that
currently there are 28 states that have inplenmented or wll
i mpl enent the silver alert program - 10 nore states than took
part since the National Association of States United for Aging
and Disability's |ast report. She related that t he
adm ni stration supports the bill. She stated that the fiscal
note indicates that conpliance with SB 179 would have no fisca

i mpact .
8:51:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN related a time when his uncle, who since
died from Alzheiner's disease, got |ost because he did not
remenber how to get honme in a town of 700 people. He said he
can see how nuch worse it would be for soneone in that situation
who lived in a larger comunity. He said he thinks SB 179 is a
good bill.

8:53:13 AM

M CHAEL O HARE, Deputy Di rector, Di vi si on of Honel and
Security/ Emergency Managenent, Departnment of MIlitary & Veterans
Affairs, stated support for the intent of SB 179. In response
to a question by Representative P. WIlson, he explained that the
department's new  energency managemnent net wor k has t he

flexibility that will allow for a systematic approach to sending
out alerts. He said the departnment currently works with the
Departnment of Public Safety to send out alerts on mssing
persons, so there would be no issues in working together. He
confirnmed that there would be no fiscal inpact under SB 179. He
encouraged the conmittee to pass the proposed |egislation. In

response to a followup question, he explained that the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- April 12, 2012



department's responsibility would be to nmake certain the alert
gets out through the emergency network through relay nessages to
broadcast nedi a. He indicated that the departnent would
coll aborate on a plan to I ook for vulnerable adults, as required
under SB 179.

8:56: 21 AM

MR OHARE, in response to a question from Representative
Gruenberg, said the Anber Alert systemis used in Al aska.

8:57:44 AM

PATRI CK CUNNI NGHAM Associ ate Professor of Social Wrk, College
of Health, University of Al aska Anchorage; Menber, Alzheiner's
Resource of Alaska Board, testified in support of SB 179. He
said a manifestation of Alzheinmer's disease is a tendency for
the person to wander and |eave his/her residence, putting
hi m her at ri sk. If that occurs, the alert system under SB 179
woul d increase the opportunity of finding the person before any
harm occurs. He said other wvulnerable adults are those
experiencing nental illness, traumatic brain injury, or other
forms of disability. He urged the comrittee to support SB 179.

8:58:57 AM

RCDNEY DI AL, Lieutenant, Al aska State Troopers, stated that the
departnent has no concerns regarding SB 179. He said he agrees
with nost of what M. OHare said, and he offered to answer
guesti ons.

8:59:41 AM

MARI E DARLIN, AARP, testified in support of SB 179. She said
she thinks the bill would prevent "some of the problens we've
had in the | ast couple of years."

9:00: 18 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

9:00: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said AS 47.24.900 is cited in the I|ast
line of SB 179 as containing the definition of "vulnerable

adul t". Representative Guenberg read the definition as
fol |l ows:

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- April 12, 2012



"vul nerabl e adult” neans a person 18 years of age or
ol der who, because of physical or nental inpairnent,
is unable to neet the person's own needs or to seek
hel p wi t hout assi stance.

9:01: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noved to report HCS SB 179, Version 27-
LS1250\M Gardner, 4/11/12, wth individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, HCS
CSSB 179(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs
Standi ng Comm ttee.

9:01: 44 AM
The commttee took an at-ease from9:02 a.m to 9:04 a. m

SJR 11- NATI ONAL WOMVEN' S HI STORY MJUSEUM

9:03:40 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER announced that the final order of business was
SENATE JO NT RESOLUTION NO. 11 am Urging nenbers of the Al aska
del egation in Congress to support efforts by the National
Wnen's History Miuseum to secure property in Washington, D.C.,
near the National Mill, as a permanent |ocation for the National
Wnen's H story Miseum

9: 03: 49 AM

SENATOR BETTYE DAVIS, Alaska State Legislature, as sponsor,
introduced SJR 11. She noted that the |late Senator Ted Stevens,
while serving in US. Congress, worked to bring a bust out of
storage and have it displayed. She deferred to her staff to
present an overview of the proposed joint resol ution.

9:05:16 AM

CELESTE HODGE, Staff, Senator Bettye Davis, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, paraphrased from the first four paragraphs of the
sponsor statement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

Senate Joint Resolution No. 11 urges nenbers of the

Al aska delegation in Congress to support efforts by
the National Wnen's H story Miseum to secure property

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- April 12, 2012



in Washington DC near the National Mll as a pernmanent
| ocation for the National Wnen's Hi story Museum

Wrmen played and continue to play essential roles in
many novenents that hel ped shape the society we val ue
so highly today. Such novenents include the Labor
Movenent, the Wnen's Suffrage Mvenent, the G vil
Ri ghts Mpvenent, the Wnen's R ghts Mvenent, and the
Envi ronmental Movenent. Wnen have long struggled to
gain ground in a society largely dom nated by nen.
Unfortunately, wonmen achievenents were nmarginalized
and credit for their work and discoveries went to
their male colleagues. Too often wonen were unsung
heroes and their contributions went wunnoticed. The
di spl acenent of wonen’s history from the consci ousness
of the general public is indicated by the absence of
wonen’ s hi story from K-12 curricul um The
achi evenents, |eadership, courage, strength and |ove
of the wonmen who built Anmerica was and is as vital as
that of the nmen whose nanes we know so wel .

In the 1970's, that began to change as a novenent to
cel ebrate wonen's history gai ned nonentum — a nonentum
we now feel each March during Wnen's History Mnth as
we pay tribute to the mllions of wonen who sacrificed
so nmuch to help create a better society and worl d.

Since its founding in 1996, the National Wnen's
Hi story Miuseum Institution, with the support of the
Nati onal Foundation for wonen |egislators, has been
working toward obtaining a permanent site near the
National Mall for its building. The construction of a
museum that exhibits the rich history of wonen and
their many contributions to society is |long overdue.
Furthernore, a location anbng the prestigious nuseuns
in and around the National Mll is fitting for an
institution that would depict such an integral and
transformati ve aspect of our nation’s history which
has for too | ong been obscured.

M5. HODGE not ed: O the 210 statues in the Capitol Building

only nine are of wnen; of the 2,400 National H storical
Landnmarks in the country, only 5 percent docunent womnmen's
acconpl i shnent s. She indicated that there are national nuseuns
dedi cated to airplanes, buildings, and postage stanps, but no
single building dedicated to celebrating the acconplishnments of

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- April 12, 2012



wonen, who conprise over half the country's population. She
urged the committee to pass SIR 11.

9:08: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN directed attention to nention of a
Nat i onal Wbnen's Hi story Miseum on page 2, line 4.

SENATOR DAVIS said it is an institute.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered his understanding that that
nmeans if he took his girls to Washington, D.C., [that nuseum
woul d not exi st. He then asked if SJR 11 is a coordinated
effort wwth other states.

SENATOR DAVIS answered yes. She said the National Foundation
for Whnen Legislators (NFW) is a national foundation of state
| egislators, which works closely with all the states and is
cosponsoring an effort to get the noney for the buil ding.

9:09:24 AM

ROBI N REED, Presi dent / CEQ, Nat i onal Foundation for Wonen
Legislators (NFW); nenber, National Wnen's H story Miseum
board, said there are nuseuns honoring Native Anericans, African
Anericans, Latin Americans, buildings, slides, textiles, and
space, but no nuseum honoring wonen. She said the National
Wnen's H story Miseum would not cost U S. Congress one penny;
it is the only nmuseum that is not asking for an appropriation.
She said the nmuseum is asking only for permssion to buy the

property. She said the first bill Al aska passed is wonen's
suffrage, which is a point that could be celebrated in a wonen's
museum She indicated that the efforts have cone close to
fruition, but were stopped last year in the U S. Senate. MVs.
Reed relayed that as the closest living relative of Susan B.
Ant hony, she has a vested interested in this issue. She said
Susan B. Anthony is the person depicted in the aforenmentioned
bust, which Senator Stevens tried to have displayed. In

response to Representative Guenberg, she said the bust was in
the basenent for 20 years before Senator Ted Stevens' efforts
got it displayed. She said the spokesperson for the proposed
museum is Meryl Streep, who remarked that it is unbelievable
that the nmuseum is not asking for noney but has to get
perm ssion to be built.

9:13:22 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- April 12, 2012



M5. REED, in response to Representative Johansen, said many
sites have been selected and all have been refused. She said
the Latin Anerican Museum was given a site in just three weeks.
She said one of the buildings the nmuseum requested was a gl ass
buil ding next to the old U S. Post Ofice, used for storing snow
machi nes, but the request was not granted. She said the nmuseum
has raised several mllion [dollars] already. She said, "W
thought if the state could push state by state by state that
they mght kind of get the idea that not everybody's a

chauvinist.”™ In response to a followup question, she clarified
that the entities saying no have been alternately the U S. House
of Representatives or the U S. Senate. She said one tine a
| egi sl ator added the issue to his bill in order to have the
overall cost of his bill |ower, because the nuseumis not asking
for any noney; however, his bill fail ed.

9:16: 31 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON related that 12 years ago, a then
| egi sl ator asked her if she had asked her husband how she shoul d
vote. She said that upset her, and she said it shows that "we"
have to try harder

MS. REED said, "For us to be able to do all these things we just

need a few good nen, | think, on your conmttee right now And
when we got the right to vote, it was a nan that gave us the
right to vote, as you renmenber."” She reiterated that the nmuseum

has the wherewithal to pay for itself.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said, "That testinony is so sad.”

9:18: 30 AM

VI CE CHAI R KELLER cl osed public testinony.

9:18: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON noved to report SJR 11 out of committee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal

not es.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected to ask that the notion be nade
with a request for unani nbus consent.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN ventured that everyone on the commttee
supports the proposed | egislation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- April 12, 2012



VICE CHAIR KELLER asked Representative Guenberg, "If you would
wi t hdraw your objection | would appreciate it, and | think that
it'"ll go just fine."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG r esponded, "That's fine."

VICE CHAIR KELLER announced that Representative G uenberg's
objection was withdrawn and [there being no further objection]
SJR 1llam was reported out of the House State Affairs Standing
Conmittee.

9:20: 23 AM

ADJ QURNMVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:20
a.m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- April 12, 2012



